
PO Box 159 
242 Fredonia Avenue 
Fredonia, Wi 53021 

Administrator: Christophe Jenkins 
admin@fredoniawi.gov  

Clerk: Michelle T. Johnson 
clerk@fredoniawi.gov  

Treasurer: Melissa Depies 
treasurer@fredoniawi.gov 

AGENDA 

FREDONIA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING  
MONDAY, March 4th, 2024 - 7:00 P.M. 

Fredonia Government Center – Village Board Room 
242 Fredonia Avenue, Fredonia, Wisconsin 

THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS WILL BE BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
FOR INITIATION, DISCUSSION, CONSIDERATION, DELIBERATION AND 

 POSSIBLE FORMAL ACTION 

1. Call to Order/ Pledge of Allegiance

2. Consent Agenda:

a) Approve Minutes from the Monday, December 4th, 2023 Planning
Commission Meeting

3. Certified Survey Map (CSM)

a) Discussion and Possible Recommendation on CSM# 2024-01: Combining
824-836 Fredonia Ave, Parcel Number 090500120006, and a Portion of
Parcel Number 090500122051.

Applicant: St. John’s Lutheran Church 

Agent: Same 

4. Action to Set Public Hearing

a) Discussion and Possible Action to Set a Public Hearing for the Rezoning of a
Portion of Parcel Number 090500122051 from A-1 General
Agricultural/Holding District to I-1 Institutional.

Applicant: St. John’s Lutheran Church 

Agent: Same 

5. Review of Existing Sign Ordinance.

6. Items for Future Consideration:

7. Adjourn
. 

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
Find Your Momen .,. Here 

mailto:admin@fredoniawi.gov
mailto:clerk@fredoniawi.gov
mailto:treasurer@fredoniawi.gov


 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a majority of the Fredonia Village Board may attend this 
meeting in order to gather information about a subject over which they have decision-
making responsibility. 
 
UPON REASONABLE NOTICE, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of 
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information or to 
request this service, contact the Village Clerk at 262-692-9125. 
 

Michelle Johnson is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: Planning Commission 
Time: Mar 4, 2024 07:00 PM Central Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87997179175 
 
Meeting ID: 879 9717 9175 
 
--- 
 
One tap mobile 
+19292056099,,87997179175# US (New York) 
+13017158592,,87997179175# US (Washington DC) 



 

1 | P a g e  P l a n  C o m m i s s i o n  1 2 / 0 4 / 2 3  
 

VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

DECEMBER 4, 2023 
 
Chairman Gehrke called the Plan Commission meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Commission members present: Dan Gehrke, Jerry Jacque, Don Dohrwardt, Gerry 
Weiland, Blake Buvid, and Troy Bretl. 
 
Board members absent: Dan Wellskopf 
 
Staff/Officials present: Village Treasurer Melissa Depies. 
 
Others present: Residents Erin Gehrke, Chris Chojnowski, and Doug Wallner.   
 
Consent Agenda 

Motion by Troy Bretl, seconded by Gerry Weiland, to approve the November 6, 
2023, Plan Commission meeting minutes as presented. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
Public Hearing and Possible Recommendations 
 
A public hearing for a zoning change to eight lots in the Village Green Subdivision, Parcel 
Numbers 09-089-00680.00, 09-089-00670.00, 09-089-00660.00, 09-089-00650.00, 09-089-
0000.008, 09-089-00640.00, 09-089-00630.00, and 09-089-00620.00 from RS-1 Single 
Family Residential to RS-2 Single Family Residential as requested by Hillcrest Fredonia, 
LLC. was called to order at 7:01 p.m.  
 
Chairman Gehrke stated that these eight lots were originally plated at RS-1; however 
surrounding properties are zoned RS-2. This re-zoning makes all properties consistent. 
 
With no comments the public hearing was closed at 7:02 p.m. 
 

Motion by Troy Bretl, seconded by Don Dohrwardt, to recommend the Village Board 
approve the re-zoning of the eight Lots in the Village Green Subdivision, Parcel 
Numbers 09-089-00680.00, 09-089-00670.00, 09-089-00660.00, 09-089-00650.00, 
09-089-0000.008, 09-089-00640.00, 09-089-00630.00, and 09-089-00620.00 from 
RS-1 Single Family Residential to RS-2 Single Family Residential. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
A public hearing for a zoning change at property address 483 N. Milwaukee Street, 
Fredonia WI, 53021, Parcel Number 09-026-01015.00, From RS-1 Single Family 
Residential to RS-2 Single Family Residential as requested by Cameron and Leah Bopp 
was called to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
With no comments the public hearing was closed at 7:02 p.m. 
 



2 | P a g e P l a n  C o m m i s s i o n 1 2 / 0 4 / 2 3

Motion by Blake Buvid, seconded by Gerry Weiland, to recommend the Village 
Board approve the zoning change for the property address 483 N. Milwaukee Street, 
Fredonia WI, 53021, Parcel Number 09-026-01015.00, From RS-1 Single Family 
Residential to RS-2 Single Family Residential. Motion carried unanimously. 

A public hearing for a zoning change to one lot in the Village Green Subdivision, Parcel 
Number 09-089-00790.00, From RS-2 Single Family Residential to RC-2 Two Unit 
Condominium Residential District as requested by Hillcrest Fredonia, LLC was called to 
order at 7:04 p.m. 

Doug Wallner stated that he is against the zoning change for this parcel. He stated that the 
entire area was originally platted as single-family housing and it should remain that way. He 
stated that the community needs growth in single family homes not condominiums. 

Don Dohrwardt stated that the plan was to have 14 to 18 condominiums in the cul-du-sac; 
however, it is believed that condominiums adjacent to the baseball field is a better fit than 
single family homes in that location. The requester believes that they could fill 
condominiums faster than single family homes. Don Dohrwardt stated that the 
condominiums would be owner occupied and not rental units; there is a need and desire for 
condominiums.   

Don Dohrwardt stated that there are good points on both sides of the argument that are 
reasonable and rational. 

Doug Wallner stated that the target demographics for these types of condominiums is the 
older resident who has no children. He questioned if having a ball field in the back yard 
would be a deterrent to this type of resident.  

Dan Gehrke stated that duplex/condominiums are the up-and-coming style of housing. He 
stated that both younger and older people are looking for this type of housing to 
reduce/eliminate the maintenance requirement of home ownership. 

Gerry Weiland stated that he hears comments all the time about Fredonia not offering 
condominium options. 

Troy Bretl stated that he will be looking for a condominium at some point in the future. He 
has lived in Fredonia for approximately 26 years and would like to remain in Fredonia. He 
also noted that he would enjoy being able to watch a ball game from the comforts of his own 
back yard and would welcome the activity. The Village currently does not have an option for 
the “baby boomers” to go; they want single level ranch style homes and less maintenance 
and not having a condominium option is a disservice to the Village. 

Dan Gehrke stated that the lots would accommodate approximately 4 single family homes 
or 8 side by side condominium units. It is not the Village’s job to determine who would 
purchase the condominiums but what is appropriate housing options for the Village.  

The public hearing was closed at 7:22 PM. 

Motion by Troy Bretl, seconded by Gerry Weiland, to recommend the Village Board 



 

3 | P a g e  P l a n  C o m m i s s i o n  1 2 / 0 4 / 2 3  
 

approve a zoning change to one lot in the Village Green Subdivision, Parcel Number 
09-089-00790.00, From RS-2 Single Family Residential to RC-2 Two Unit 
Condominium Residential District. Motion carried unanimously. 
 

Items for future consideration 
Dan Gehrke stated that the next meeting of the Planning Commission will be scheduled 
for January 8, 2024 if needed. At this time a no meeting is required. 
 
Adjournment 

Motion by Don Dohrwardt, seconded by Blake Buvid, to adjourn the meeting at 
7:23 p.m. Motion carried unanimously. 



VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
Find Your Moments Here 

Owner of Property 

Property Address 

City, State, Zip Code 

Phone Number 

Email 

Subdivision Requested: 

CSM/ Plat Review Application 
· 242 Fredonia Ave 

-n o 

PO Box 159 
Fredonia, Wisconsin 53021 

(262) 692-9125 
https://www.fredoniawi.gov/ 

Owner's Information 

Does this property require a zoning change ~ Yes 

Proposed Use of Property: ' 
C e """' (j_ \ -, 

Date 
Filed 

Fee* 
$250.00 

0 No 

Names and Addresses of Adjoining Property Owners 

(Use Reverse if Needed) 

1. \-v"\ o._~\hQ..v.J ~ ~~~e.s \ '-\0 S\ 
2. -::s e_{' ~ y-y-.,' -.! '3. 0\ - (:_: . \,.\ \.-\ £ ' ~ ~ O--J"-.~ s 
3. Ge..~ 'rC">.t l." \ (''-k, ::\ t:;~ ' v ' 'f'\ • 0 

4. Ce \ Du..nr-. \.,, 6:c1'. ~'l'<::> 

5. S-\e." ... ~ . 'r'\ -_ ·.'I.'!_ £~~-- " 
t) \:) c:,.-.,e,,..\&,_ 

\ \.a 3 ~ \ \ "°'-(:) 'I , ~1. 
~q_ \-' \\\ ~ --":>~ S-\ , 

\3 7 \=-,\\~M <;: \ -

I certify that the forgoing statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Address of Owner (if different from above): 

c2µ1 ( c2Q2/-f 

V'-fo~ 

Notice: This application must be complete and accurate, or it will be returned. CSM, survey, building plans, 
and/or drawings pertaining to this subdivision request must be included with this application before a hearing 
will be scheduled. 
* Fee $250 PLUS $5 per lot PLUS any engineering, administrative, or special meeting costs related to the 
subdivision. 



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. ___ _ 
BEING A SUBDIVISION OF A PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4-SW1/4), SECTION TWENTY-SIX (26), TOWNSHIP 
TWELVE (12) NORTH, RANGE TWENTY-ONE (21) EAST, VILLAGE OF FREDONIA, 

OZAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

(N87' 59' 45'E) t 
WEST QUARTER CORNER 
SECTION 26, T12N, R21E 
FOUND SEWRPC BRASS CAP 3.59' N87° 58' 04'E 

@t 
I 

I\ 
I 

J 
~I 

~l 
g1 

ii 
i1 

II 
51 

'I 
\ 

TIE-LINE 
N86' 53'49'E 

P.0.B. 

ARC LENGTH=24.29' (24.29') 
I RADIUS=65.00' (65.00') 

I 
CHORD=N20'43'01'W 

(N20' 41' 20'W) 
~~ CHORDLENGTH=24.15' 
~~ (24.15'} 

~~I 

iZ . · 1 

I 

\; 

ARC LENGTH=18.03' (18.03') 
RADIUS=125.00' (125.00') 

CHORD=N27'17'20'W (N27' 15' 27'W) 
CHORD LENGTH=18.02' (18.02') 

I 

f; 
~ 

C 

\ 

149.9T -; 
(149.9T) 

~~ 
t;;t;; 
,:;.~ 

N88' 20' 30"E 

160.00' 

(157.81') 
162.15' 

~f 
sto 
;...b .,,.,, 
be, 
"'e 

-· \ 

• 887, or 31-W 111.98'-· 
(S87" 09' 12-W):171.98') 

\ J 

(N89' 52' OO'W) 
S89' 50' 42"E 

LOT1 

(428.35') 
428.25' 

i \ 

GROSS AREA: 382,684 SQ. FT. 
OR 8.78 ACRES 

30' WIDE ACCESS 
EASEMENT 

(N87" 23' 30"E) (211.82') 
!- S87' 21' 49'W 211.62' 

\ s1· 22' 39'W 53.02' 
(N1' 24' 20"E 53.02') 

(N66' 26' 12'E) (216.13) 
S86' 26' 31'W 218.13' _I. ! 

I --r - I - L _J 

.i. - -- -~ J.~,1~•-"'"'°'""'=-,~ t-~,_;:,_~ - NB6' 48 3 (2638.35') SECTION 26, T12N, R21E 
(NB6' 48' 04'E) CORNER ESTABLISHED 

:~~~~~::r';~~~~E LEGEND FROM FOUND TIES 

FOUND SEWRPC BRASS CAP 
(P.O.C.) 

BEARINGS ARE REFERENCED TO THE WEST LINE 
OF THE SW1/4 OF SECTION 26, T12N, R21E, 

MEASURED TO BEAR N1' 23' 29'W. 

0 

DATUM: WISCONSIN COUNTY COORDINATE 
SYSTEM, OZAUKEE COUNTY, U.S. FOOT 

75• 150' 300' 
SCALE: 1"=150 Feet 

PREPARED BY: 

@ 
0 
• 
" 0 

P.O.B. 
P.O.C. 
() 

RAMAKER 
RAMAKER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
855 COMMUNITY DRIVE 

r-;•,,,,:,. d 

(608) 643 41DO M, ,; ra;mhi .t011 

SAUK CITY, WI 53563 
PHONE: (608) 643-4100 
PROJECT NUMBER: 59628 

SECTION CORNER, FOUND (AS NOTED ON MAP). SEE 
COUNTY SURVEYOR RECORDS. LOCATION OF ALL 
MONUMENTS AND WITNESS TIES HAVE BEEN VERIFIED 
CORNER ESTABLISHED FROM FOUND TIES 
SET 3/4" DIA. IRON ROD, 24" LONG WEIGHING 1.5#/LF 
FOUND 314" DIAMETER IRON ROD 
FOUND 1-114" DIAMETER IRON PIPE 
FOUND 1" DIAMETER IRON PIPE 
POINT OF BEGINNING 
POINT OF COMMENCEMENT 
RECORDED AS DATA 

NOTES: 
1. THE LOTS OF THIS C.S.M. ARE CONSIDERED 
UNBUILDABLE UNTIL A SOILS & SITE EVALUATION REPORT 
AS REQUIRED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF SAFETY & 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IS FILED WITH THE OZAUKEE 
COUNTY LANO & WATER MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT. 
2. FIELD WORK COMPLETED DECEMBER 14, 2023. 

PREPARED FOR/PROPERTY OWNER: 
ST. JOHNS EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHURCH 
ATTN: TOM PAULUS 
824 FREDONIA AVENUE 
FREDONIA, WI 53021 

I 

/ 
/ " \ 

( \ 
I oP'< oNL'< I 
\ p_E\IIE-'IN c I 
\ I 

I 
/ 

TRENTO. NELSON DATE:02116/2024 
WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR #3132..fl 

SHEET 1 OF 2 SHEETS 



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 
BEING A SUBDIVISION OF A PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4-SW1/4), 
SECTION TWENTY-SIX (26), TOWNSHIP TWELVE (12) NORTH, RANGE TWENTY-ONE (21) EAST, VILLAGE OF FREDONIA, 

OZAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE: 

I, IBENT D. NELSON, WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR NUMBER 3132~. HEREBY CERTIFY: 

THAT I HAVE SURVEYED AND MAPPED A CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW114-SW114) OF SECTION 26, 
TOWNSHIP 12 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, VILLAGE OF FREDONIA, OZAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENClNG AT FOUND SEWRPC BRASS CAP MONUMENT LOCATING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SND SECTION 26; 

THENCE N1"23'29"W, 525.46 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 26; 

THENCE N68"63'49'E, 207.46 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE CONTINUING N88"53'49", 126.89 FEET TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF LOT 24, BLOCK 1 OF ASSESSOR'S PLAT OF FREDONIA; 

THENCE N1"19'08"W, 710.96 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF LOT 24, BLOCK 1 OF ASSESSOR'S PLAT OF FREDONIA; 

THENCE N87"58'04"E, 149.97 FEET; 

THENCE S0'51'41"E, 137.38 FEET; 

THENCE S89"50'42"E. 428.25 FEET; 

THENCE S2"29'49'E, 705.17 FEET; 

THENCE S86'26'31'W, 216.13 FEET; 

THENCE S87"21'49"W, 211.62 FEET; 

THENCE S1"22'39"W, 53.02 FEET; 

THENCE S87"07'31'W, 171.98 FEET TOA POINTON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF EDMARO STREET AND THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHWEST; 

THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 125.00 FEET, A DISTANCE OF 18.03 FEET, HAVING A CHORD N27'17'20'W, 18.02 FEET; 

THENCE N31'25'11'W, 200.00 FEET ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY OF EDMARO STREET TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE CONCAVE TO THE NORTHEAST; 

THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE HAVING A RADIUS OF 65.00 FEET, A DISTANCE OF 24.29 FEET, HAVING A CHORD N20'43'01'W, 24.15 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

ALONG WITH A 30' WIDE ACCESS EASEMENT. 

THAT THE DESCRIBED CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP CONTAINS A GROSS AREA OF 465,537 SQUARE FEET OR 10.68 ACRES OF LANO, MORE OR LESS. 

THAT THE DESCRIBED SURVEY MAP IS SUBJECT TO ALL EASEMENTS, AGREEMENTS OR OTHER ENCUMBRANCES & RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD. 

THAT I HAVE COMPLIED WITH THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 236.34 OF WISCONSIN STATE STATUTES, CHAPTER A-E 7 OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE CODE OF THE STATE OF 
WISCONSIN, THE SUBDMSION REGULATIONS OF OZAUKEE COUNTY AND THE SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE VILLAGE OF FREDONIA TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE 
ANO BELIEF IN SURVEYING, DIVIDING AND MAPPING THE SAME. 

THAT SUCH CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP IS A CORRECT REPRESENTATION OF ALL EXTERIOR BOUNDARIES OF THE LAND SURVEYED AND THE SUBDIVISION MADE THEREOF. 

THAT I HAVE MADE SUCH CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE ST. JOHNS EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH, OWNER OF THE DESCRIBED LANDS. 

TRENT D. NELSON 
WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR #3132~ 

DATE: 02/1612024 

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE: 

I 

/ 
/ 

( \ 
I ~oP'< oNL '( \ 
\ F,f:.\/\(\f\l C I 
\ I 

"' / -..... / 
~~.._ _/ 

AS OWNER, I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I CAUSED THE LANDS DESCRIBED ON THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP TO BE SURVEYED, DIVIDED & MAPPED AS REPRESENTED ON THE 
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP IS REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED TO THE FOLLOWING AGENCIES FOR APPROVAL OR OBJECTION: 

-OZAUKEE COUNTY PLANNING AND PARKS DIVISION 
-VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 

ST. JOHNS EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH DATE 

OZAUKEE COUNTY PLANNING DIVISION: 

APPROVED BY THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMITTEE OF OZAUKEE COUNTY ON THIS ___ DAY OF ______ ~ 20 __ . 

ANDREW STRUCK - DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND PARKS DEPARTMENT DATE 

VILLAGE BOARD RESOLUTION: 

RESOLVED THAT THIS CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP HEREBY IS APPROVED BY THE VILLAGE BOARD OF FREDONIA. 

VILLAGE PRESIDENT DATE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A COPY OF A MOTION ADOPTED BY THE VILLAGE BOARD OF FREDONIA. 

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR DATE 

PREPARED BY: 
RAMAKER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
855 COMMUNITY DRIVE 
SAUK CITY, WI 53583 
PHONE: (608) 643-4100 
PROJECT NUMBER: 59528 

PREPARED FOR/PROPERTY OWNER: 
ST. JOHNS EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN 
CHURCH 
ATTN: TOM PAULUS 
824 FREDONIA AVENUE 
FREDONIA, WI 53021 SHEET 2 OF 2 SHEETS 



"ll 

h 
iii 
~~ 

6 
-~ 
L 
jg 

ji 
§ 
1" 
§ 
@ 

e 
:': 
<i .. 
g 
<n 
~ 

,1' 

B 

j 
l 
] 
.E 

"' -6 
1 • g 
" ~ 
~ 
"' al :,1 3 
~ 

i 
,! 

i 
f 
~ e 
~ 
al 
u 

~ 
I. TOTA:.AR1A0!'5IT!!. .. ~Df-.CT..t5 
2. TOTAI..Af.!At'IS'l'tJfe[-0---;;---::!!1Q_ACT!:5 

GRAD,NG ANO 5T()ru,1 DRAN.:.Gl: NOftS 

T AU. nt\lAD0t1'.'l St101\'N AJ/.f. TO !'lt.l.5HEO &..A::lt' 
2. CL!:Alt AL. me, eRJ5H. STUMre, MD OTH1=". or..GAMIC 

>JATE.fl'JALFR.OM ,>,,l>.V-STO ec rH.lfD. 
3. Ml fn'OF!T HAS ef!\: 1/,'\(}t' TO fllCORJ'G'..AT! J,,Jfr "-'JO AU. 

APf,ICADlt h!crn::;. ::itTNl..5 fl\lD C!?JTICAL :NfOr..MATIO',/ r1«)M 
THt'. GfOTfO!Nl(.AL 'tUORf ON10 fHfSE 1",.AN :C,H?eTS. 
H01veveF'~ n-tc CQNTRACT~!,,"IALL er Rt!:if'O>;StelJ'. !"CR 
OeTANll,/G, T:se '-JO,T Ul"-TO-OA-:'t GWT?CHNICAf. R!t'O'l1' ANO 
FAMIL!AltlZ!!>lCi n-tCM5?1vt5 WIT/1 5J,.J:) R!'"Cr.i". 

4 RE~OV[ >\U. IJNSUrTAbl.E ",V1Tl;.".IAL (MUCY. OP, 
~0!-1-COVJ'AOADc.f MAT"~Al..l FROM.~ TO Bl!: f':LL!O. 

5 COt.'TKi'>CTO!":. 511A:.L 1/,tll:N Gl"'.A::/ll•W e:'.1Vit!'.'< CONTOU<:S AN'.J 
eiE1"1.'!;ft1 l'Oih.S or Sf'OT eu'.VATIO'l5. (,;p.A!Je ON A \;N!fORM 
SLOP?:. 

,. C0Nn:AC1"0r. SHAU~ fOlt Al.l C..J¼~5tD J.J'Vb. er: !>,!SPON':lreu:: 
rot- lL"l'lACNG ewoco SOIL Gv-55 sew 1'N'JJ01{ t,\Ul01 
UNTIL A,\I An'!'sOVtD 5iAND o~ GMSS IS t$TA.Dt1~.-iro. 
COl:Tr.A....---CW.5t1A!.L e.t~0f>l'. 0t:'Gl'lNING ~ING WO.,~;;: Qt; 
5!Tt. lt6'1"Al.L e.lLT ftN:;;t '6 5tt0\'IN O'l THt ?LANS. A5 
5f:)1MENT E:\JH.05 ur AAOUNO SI Lr t't:NQ'., Rf\•Ove SfO,MENT 
AND Pl:"LAQ'. \Vl1f.:t f~510N HA5 TAl(l')./ f'V.Cf 

'5. r.ACH !!1'.CT10ll or Pl/'!! Sl"'ALL BC lA'0 TO sr~CH'IEO UNI: MID 
\AIOU<'Gf'-,\Ol!. 

~- C0hiR,•Oor. 5nALL PJ!\.10Vl: AU. DECF'J5 A\:D OTl""'ER. ""'~At.!> 
~ULTI\C f"ROM 0!'.MOLITION AN:) 0151'051: err sm: Utllf':l.S 
O'!MW'tr5:: ADvr,m BY O\','NeR.. 

r 0. C0NTAACt0f: 5HAU. ~fJ'" /1.W.. ROAD:, ADJACEflT TO me: ~m: 
Cl!AN DU~\~ coriSTIWCTIOII 

I 1. ::0),ffi:A...'7"QV. 5HAf1. ee AWAPI:. or EXl5'1"1-.G L.n°lLiTY' UNt5 
0Ul'J\G Ml'": UNC. t'-15TAUATI0t.l. CA.t.:..kl. VTl:Jf'Y cctJFA-'<JfS 
l'OR l.O:;A.TlONS ON !,ITI: 

I:. AU. fl-ON:lWAY AND c;J;>.MlACE CONSn:tUCT/CN Me TO CONFOR!i,1 
T!, LOCAL AG!:t.JCY 5TA'IOAIW 5M:0FlCATI0N5. (IA""f:!iT Rt\1510N 
AT Tot:: OeGINlilNG 0.- C0'6T~C7l0N.J 

1;3 AU!¼'N.'I..YCON5~c:Tt05L0P"'.2>\'t'l11Ct1~-1:I 01"..Snfl'EP. 
'IU':lT er: 5TAZ,!Uz:D tw 1145TAL:.ATICN Ot- tROOION C01'.'Tf:OL 
MATTING .l,!JO 5f"fDfD A5 500N AS i'~ICAOL!. 

\ \ 
' \ 

4.:l, l"WT5 reR CLUST:'F:: ----
WO f'l0i5 TOTAL 

fXA:)JA.O:~'TPR0PCRlYL•'<l; 

r-~"'osw r,,,.cr:~n- ur.e 

1--

!RAMAKER j '-~/-

(',1.'(Jtfli>':) j 
[601;)64:l-410• ,rn,~.r.im2k~r.cmr, 1 

' l : 
t 

] 
' ~ 

~ 
It I 

"IO~TH 

•• 
• • I I I I 1 I I I ' / 

I=·~ 
I 

I 

l?Rt 
1 

FOR REVIEW r 
PURPOSES ONlYi 

~ 
~ 
t 

' F' 

,// 

l'"ROrQ:31.'.D -"CC55 DRJVt: 

D,._Tt 0£;!'.,CF.if'TIO'~ 

~Tr~D- 02J J G/2023 . 

~~~. f'REUMl~JARY ~ 
.. f:o.ircrnn.::- R 

ST JOHN'S ~ 

, < ,, , _ ~ ~v'~,~~'..7 - FREDONIA 

I 
"''CCe!WJVC- :>>1 " -J..y-" -- ~ -- --- - ___ ,. -- -~ CEMETERY 

\ ~'.'.] ______ _,_ -, - - -- --
------~~----,- , ·; - -~ , ,;:~ "ru=~!:,ANSION 

,' .:---:-:---4 - , --------""''''WFGO.wr. ----- 5T JOHN'S LUTHERAN 
_,,.---- I ------------ ' \ \ ' _,,~- ' ------------------- - 1 '- CHURCH i' \ ~ . /"~-' ,, -l _-, , , -. . -- "- rr..oJeCTLCO\.ricN. ~ 

\ ~ /~ -_ '-_ · , ' ' ' -~~---·------
1
L--::::::=-E>LcuLVCST ____ __ • ~a,n,o,-,,oee,..,.,ce,,,s 824fREDONIAAVE t 

\ <) , }<;,-_::-- ~ _
1

____ _ _ __ _ _ - - "'-- ::_- _ - ":) --~~ ~~-~_""_- •'~:"' __ __ --- ~- ::::::::: ~~!?,,~NIA WI 5302 I , 

\ ';;,f . , -0:Rff'RA"' b ',_ 7 'Y.: ',./ --- l";".Of'OOU"ll#..IO~,a)f.T,:JUl'5 STORM DRAINAGE-$ \< 

\ / , \ ~ \ -... --- ~J)f"O~COIJll"O<:CQ,ifOW.5 GRADING FLAN e r:.XC.lJlvt:::.T 
ltN..,0-40.70 

r~aC'.lto!•fO!a✓ :.;ewtK 
\/0 \ 
\IS'\ \, ~ \ 5';:,T1f.:;:OTDf.M:lt'\</D': '"R.0ftiCT 

\ Dl~TIM,I.QTU'>E> M,
1 

t:t!t 59G28 
,wr., C300 i 



~ 5fTt INfOi:MAilOI~ 

~ 1 J. rARCCLARU, - ::: Te-? ACR.e5 
~ 1 I . ! • J:Xl!,TlfJ(; COf-t:5riiCN5 IMPfR.v:O1.5 A,i:;,EA. - 4,G73 ~r. : Teo% 
ft i5_ I .2. FROP05i:D COND!TIO\l5 !Wf'e!'W!Ol/5 Af'.!.A .. e,726 SF, ijfu?.% - -- -- - --
JI' o 1 • .3. Ne;T ll;CP.!A5C IN iMrtF:VlOU5 AR!;A - 5,055 5F r.;;~ ro ~ 
:.Cb 14. TOTALDl5.UROl'.PMCA•>TI>DAC"'5 R .. MAKER c 
• <:=, 2. CURR!'.ITT ZON1NG1 A-!, ACR!CUt.T~ A Q 

<,.> 0 3. CURRENT U::IE, AGR:CUt.TUF!AL ,=----- ~ 
..r.c. 4. PAST US~: r.r, INSTITUTTONA!. 1608) s.;J . .\1f}Q 1¥WWJJinJktr.c~m ? 
§ Gf.NERALNQT>o,_s •',,•,•,'.'""· ' 

§ l I • CONTRJCT0R SMALL INSTALL THe: "lEQ:55;..Rl' TRAIT1C j 
Jl i',5 COl<1'ROLAN:)ADVMCTDWARN11',G5JC--N548t"!OUR5 ''s'-----r-,--., J 
- ;;;:: PRJOR.T0PfPJ'ORM!NGA"4YWOR<VvlTHINPJGMT-Of'-WJ..Y -----i• £ 

H 
ol 

CC) 
$:) 

f 
§ 

4a nors n-R cwsre~ ---.. 
2Wl'I.OT5TOTA!.. -... 

[ 

' 
(§1 

\ El(AD,iAC:NTPFJ)Pf!~tL!NE-.. ~ l 
t 

I 

e 
~ 
<O 

:i; 
g 

'" 
~ 

,E 

~ 
1 
i 
i 
I: 

.f 
go 
j 

I 

I '-.--......___'.'.:::!,.__ 
r----

ri:-.o~osro ri.:or.:~sY situ::: 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

t=i 
l=:l 

T•· \ , I ' 

'T. ' I --1---i 
I 

. --
I ,oro____J r----[T':'11 I 

f'R0f'05!D ACCE:35 DfJVt 

NO~TH { 

-i 
-:1 FOR REVIEW I" 

PURPOSES ONLY ~ 
~ 
"3 
' l 
¾ 

' 
2 
I 
1 
'i 
Ji 

, 
1 
I~ 

1 
p ... re i Dt'Xr.Jrr10>1 ~ 

6';~~. 021 l G/2023 -' 
~~- PP-f:UM!NAR.Y 

t ·; 
PiW~~-rr:-rl!:. 1 5T JOHN'5 

FREDONIA E 
! CEMETERY t 

I EXPAN510N ] 
5TJOHN'5 LUTHERAN 1 
CHURCH i f'F:OJtCf LOCAT:Cr., 

824 FREDONIA AVE 
FO>Fr\()SIIA WI 53QZJ 

W..t:1 

I /;e~~=-=-~----------:-~-~-:-- -""··- , 
~ ~ · ✓- --

1 

-- - - - - - - L-fL-----------------__j--r:: i 
';( () , ./~ - -\-- - - PROPOSED SITE PLAN ! 
t "4 ,/, ""''" , 

--------

Ji ';7 //, / I 1-~-~-.,,,---:;;;.----j; 
'S -0 lJ'.GfND O 10 '° •, ! ~ ~ I • t.:.a:rn1-:;r~f'tl'JYCO.::•.teR ~-. , ~ ii /;;. rr•.r~-,·-,o i 

S O I e,o,cs,,cmc.,w, :;JJ,f)_''"•·· ·~-;~28 { 
1 , C\ \ --- e>:ISTEt,(,LQTtJ'I/!!, ~r!J C200 tl ____ Lv..,A~~_L_ _____ _J_ _______ ___i,::;:""'"=-·"'' --=-=--
~ 
~ 
u 





VILLAGE OF FREDONIA 
Find Your Moments Herc 

Owner of Property 

Property Address 

City, State, Zip Code 

Phone Number 

Email 

Present Use of Property 

Proposed Use of Property 

Zoning Change Application 
242 Fredonia Ave 

PO Box 159 
Fredonia, Wisconsin 53021 

(262) 692-9125 
https://www.fredoniawi.gov/ 

Owner's Information 

A.~'i' \ C:. IA.\ \ vd'~ 

C ~ '"""' .,.__ \-· ~ ...._, 

Date 
Filed 

Fee 
$200.00 

Current Zoning District A. ~ 1. G Q '<'-o <L \ ~~, .. ' c.._-.r,\\v., ~ 
Proposed Zoning District 1., ~- 1. ~-~ 5 ~ \ \ ·v.. -\·~of'\ o__\ 

Names and Addresses of Adjoining Property Owners 
(Use Reverse if Needed) 

1. \l") o__~-\ ¼_-..,J ~ ~ es \0\0 t~ ~ ~"'--\f'O S·\. . 
2. ~•:,,,,,,~O"" \) , \} \e\ s i \ \ 0 r-~ rc-- 'l' O s+, 
3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

Signature of Owner: a,hy £2 /~ 
Address of Owner (if different from above): 

.. .:.- . 

~ ( ..Jj (c20J-lf 

403~2.s 



E
d

m
a

ro
S

t
E

d
m

a
ro

S
t

E
d

m
a

ro
S

t

84Fredonia Ave

Veterans Park

St. Johns
Church

Stoney
Creek

Park Pond

F
illm

o
re

S
t

F
illm

o
re

S
t

Stoney Creek
Park

84
84Fredonia Ave

F
illm

o
re

S
t

C
h

ic
a

g
o

a
n

d
N

o
rt

h
w

e
s

te
rn

R
a

il
ro

a
d

C
h

ic
a

g
o

a
n

d
N

o
rt

h
w

e
s

te
rn

R
a

il
ro

a
d

84 Fredonia Ave

B-1 Business

M-2 Manufacturing

I-1 Institutional

RS-3 Single Family Residential

RS-2 Single Family Residential

RS-2 Single Family Residential

RD-1 Residential Duplex

B-1 Business

P-1 Park

RS-3 Single Family Residential

RS-3 Single Family Residential

RS-2 Single Family Residential

A-1 General Agricultural/Holding District

RS-1 Single Family Residential

M-2 Manufacturing

A-1 General Agricultural/Holding District

I-1 Institutional

RS-1 Single Family Residential

A-1 General Agricultural/Holding District

Village of Fredonia Maps

Esri Community Maps Contributors, © OpenStreetMap,
Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph,
GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS,
US Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS

Zoning

A1-General Agricultural/Holding District

B-1 Business

C-1 Conservancy

I-1 Institutional

M-2 Manufacturing

P-1 Park

RD-1 Residential Duplex

RD-2 Residential Duplex

RS-1 Single Family Residential

RS-2 Single Family Residential

RS-3 Single Family Residential

Control Survey Diagram

PLSS Quarter Sections

PLSS Sections

PLSS Townships

CSM

Building Footprints

Parcels

Road Reservation

Road Right-of-Way

Condominium

Gap

Overlap

Tax Parcel

Historical Parcel Lines

Local Roads

Local

Private

Ramp

Service Drive

Highways

Interstate

State Highway

County Highway

Railroad Centerline

PLSS Corners

Center of Section

GPS Point

Meander Corner

Quarter Section Corner

Section Corner

Witness Corner

2/21/2024, 3:09:52 PM

0 0.04 0.080.02 mi

0 0.07 0.130.03 km

1:2,257

Village of Fredonia
Esri Community Maps Contributors, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft, Esri, TomTom, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau, USDA, USFWS |

"'' 

-D 
D 
D 
D 
D -

, FIE • ?12 a 

D 
D -D 
D 
~--·1 L ___ , 

c::] 

[_~~] 

D -
D 
D 
D 
~ 

~ • 
D • 

$ 

• 
-+---4 

IS 

• 





§ 575-66 Sign permits required. 
No sign shall hereafter be located, erected, moved, reconstructed, extended, enlarged, converted, or structurally altered without a 
zoning permit, except those signs excepted in § 575-67, and without being in conformity with the provisions of this chapter. 

§ 575-67 Signs permitted in all districts without permit. 
The following signs are permitted in all zoning districts without a permit, subject to the following regulations: 

A. Real estate signs not to exceed eight square feet in area which advertise the sale, rental, or lease of the premises upon which 
said signs are temporarily located. 

B. Name and warning signs not to exceed two square feet located on the premises. 

C. Household occupation and professional home office not to exceed two square feet in area and mounted flush against the 
dwelling. 

D. Bulletin boards for public, charitable or religious institutions not to exceed 50 square feet in area located on the premises. 

E. Bulletin boards for public, charitable or religious institutions not to exceed 50 square feet in area located on the premises. 

F. Memorial signs, tablets, names of buildings, and date of erection when cut into any masonry surface or when constructed of 
metal and affixed flat against a structure. 

G. Official signs, such as traffic control, parking restrictions, information, and notices. 

H. Temporary signs or banners when authorized by the Planning Commission for a period of not more than six months. 

I. Temporary signs or banners to be displayed for 45 days or less which promote community events or events sponsored by 
nonprofit organizations with prior approval of at least two of the three following Village officials: Village President, Village 
Clerk, Director of Public Works. 

J. Rummage sale signs used for the purpose of advertising the sale of merchandise at a private residence by at least one 
occupant of said residence, subject to the following regulations: 

(1) Such signs shall be posted only on the day(s) of the sale. 

(2) Signs shall not be attached to or displayed on traffic or regulatory signs, light poles, parkway/terrace trees or other 
public property. 

(3) Signs shall be ground signs. 

(4) Signs must not exceed four square feet, shall be a minimum of 10 feet from the right-of-way line of the intersection 
street, and are not allowed in the median strip of boulevard streets. 

K. Election campaign signs, provided that permission has been obtained from the property owner, renter or lessee. The 
combined area of campaign signs on properties in a business or industrial district shall not exceed 100 square feet. In 
residential districts, campaign signs shall not exceed 20 square feet in area on all sides. No election campaign signs are 
permitted on public property or in any public right-of-way. This section shall not apply during an election campaign period, as 
defined as the period beginning on the first day of circulation of nomination papers by candidates for office or the first day 
on which candidates would circulate nomination papers were papers to be required and ending on the day of the election; in 
the case of a referendum, the period beginning on the day on which the question to be voted on is submitted to the 
electorate and ending on the day on which the referendum is held. 
[ Amended at time of adoption of Code ( see Ch. 1, General Provisions, Art. 11)] 

§ 575-68 Signs permitted in all business and manufacturing districts with permit. 
Signs are permitted in all business, manufacturing, and extractive districts subject to the following restrictions. Each premises is 
limited to two of the following sign types, and any unused area may not be transferred from one sign type to another: 



A. Wall signs placed against the walls of buildings shall not extend more than six inches outside of a building's wall surface, shall 
not exceed 500 square feet in area for any one premises, and shall not exceed 20 feet in height above the mean center-line 
street grade. 

B. Projecting signs fastened to, suspended from, or supported by structures shall not exceed 100 square feet in area for any one 
premises, shall not extend more than six feet into any required yard, shall not extend more than three feet into any public 
right-of-way, shall not be less than 10 feet from all side lot lines, shall not exceed a height of 20 feet above the mean center
line street grade, and shall not be less than 10 feet above the sidewalk nor 15 feet above a driveway or an alley. 

C. Ground signs shall be of the monument style, shall not exceed 30 feet in height above the mean center-line street grade, shall 
not be less than 10 feet from any right-of-way or lot line, shall not exceed 100 square feet on one side nor 200 square feet on 
all sides for any one premises. 

D. Roof signs shall not exceed 10 feet in height above the roof, shall meet all the yard and height requirements for the district in 
which it is located and shall not exceed 300 square feet on all sides for any one premises. The sign shall be considered part of 
the building in determination of permitted height. 

E. Window signs shall not exceed 50% of the glass area of the pane upon which the sign is displayed. 

F. Combinations of any of the above signs shall meet all the requirements for the individual sign. 

§ 575-69 Signs permitted in institutional and park districts with permit. 
Institutional and park name signs are permitted in the institutional and park districts when approved by the Village Board after 
review and recommendation by the Planning Commission. 

§ 575-70 Municipal-owned signs. 
Municipal-owned signs may be permitted in any district without a permit, provided that permission shall be obtained from the 
property owner, renter, or lessee and provided that such sign shall not exceed 200 square feet in area per face. 

§ 575-71 Search lights. 
The Village Board may permit the temporary use of a search light for advertising purposes in any district, provided that the search 
light will not be located in any public right-of-way, will not be located closer than 10 feet to an adjacent property, and will not cause 
a hazard to traffic or adjoining properties. Search light permits shall not be granted for a period of more than five days in any six
month period. 

§ 575-72 Facing. 
No sign, except those permitted in §§ 575-67 and 575-69, shall be permitted to face a residential or park district within 100 feet of 
such district boundary. 

§ 575-73 Lighting and color. 
Signs shall not resemble, imitate, or approximate the shape, size, form, or color of railroad or traffic signs, signals, or devices. Signs 
shall not obstruct or interfere with the effectiveness of railroad or traffic signs, signals, or devices. Signs shall not be erected, 
relocated, or maintained so as to prevent free ingress to or egress from any door, window, or fire escape; and no sign shall be 
attached to a standpipe or fire escape. Signs shall not be placed so as to obstruct or interfere with traffic visibility, nor be lighted in 
such a way as to cause glare or impair driver visibility upon public ways. Signs may be illuminated but only by non-flashing lighting. 

§ 575-74 Construction and maintenance standards. 
A. Wind pressure and dead load requirements. All signs and other advertising structures shall be designed and constructed to 

withstand wind pressure of not less than 40 pounds per square foot of area and shall be constructed to receive dead loads as 

required in the Village Building Code[,] or other ordinance. 
[ 1 J Editor's Note: See Ch. 200, Building Construction. 

B. Protection of the public. The temporary occupancy of a sidewalk or street or other public property during construction, 
removal, repair, alteration or maintenance of a sign is permitted, provided the space occupied is roped off, fenced off, or 



otherwise isolated. 

C. Maintenance. The owner of any sign shall keep it in good maintenance and repair, which includes restoring, repainting, or 
replacement of a worn or damaged legally existing sign to its original condition, and shall maintain the premises on which the 
sign is erected in a clean, sanitary, and inoffensive condition, free and clear of all obnoxious substances, rubbish, weeds, and 
grass. 

D. Supporting members or braces. Supporting members or braces of all signs shall be constructed of galvanized iron, properly 
treated steel, copper, brass, or other noncorrosive incombustible material. All projecting signs, if placed at a right or other 
angle to the wall or roof of any building, shall be attached by such noncorrosive metal bolts, anchors, cable, or other metal 
attachments as shall ensure permanent and safe construction and shall be maintained free from rust or other defects. Every 
means or device used for attaching any sign shall extend through the walls or roof of the building should the Building 
Inspector determine that the safe and permanent support of such sign so requires and shall be securely anchored by wall 
plates and nuts to the inside of the walls or to bearings on the under side of two or more roof or ceiling joists in accordance 
with instructions given by the Building Inspector. Small flat signs containing less than 10 feet of area may be attached to a 
building by the use of lag bolts or other means to the satisfaction of the Building Inspector. 

E. No signs, or any part thereof, or sign anchors, braces, or guide rods shall be attached, fastened, or anchored to any fire 
escape fire ladder, or standpipe and no such sign or any part of any such sign or any anchor, brace, or guide rod shall be 
erected, put up, or maintained so as to hinder or prevent ingress or egress through such door, doorway, or window or as to 
hinder or prevent the raising or placing of ladders against such building by the Fire Department of the Village, as necessity 
therefor may require. 

§ 575-75 Existing signs. 
Signs lawfully existing at the time of the adoption or amendment of this chapter may be continued although the size or location 
does not conform to this chapter. However, all nonconforming signs shall be deemed to have exhausted their economic life after 
seven years from the time they became a nonconforming use. Nonconforming signs, after this seven-year period, shall either be 
made to conform to the terms of this chapter or shall be removed by the owner, agent, or person having beneficial use of the 
property. Nonconforming signs, during the seven-year grace period, shall be kept in good repair, but the cost of maintenance shall 
not be considered grounds for their continued use beyond the seven-year period. The Village Planning Commission shall, after the 
seven-year grace period, notify the owner, agent, or person having beneficial use of the property, of the expiration of the grace 
period. After 30 days, if the sign has not been made to conform to this chapter or removed, the Planning Commission shall initiate 
appropriate punitive action. Signs which are not repaired, painted or maintained pursuant to written notification and orders by the 
Planning Commission shall also be subject to punitive action. 

§ 575-76 Sign permit. 
A. Applications for a sign permit shall be made on forms provided by the Village Clerk and shall contain or have attached thereto 

the following information: 
[Amended 11-17-2022 by Ord. No. 2022-6] 

(1) Name, address, and telephone number of the applicant. Location of building, structure, or lot to which or upon which 
the sign is to be attached or erected. 

(2) Name of person, firm, corporation, or association erecting the sign. 

(3) Written consent of the owner or lessee of the building, structure, or land to which or upon which the sign is to be 
affixed. 

(4) A scale drawing of such sign, indicating the dimensions, the materials to be used, the type of illumination, if any, and the 
method of construction and attachment. 

(5) A scale drawing indicating the location and position of such sign in relation to nearby building or structures. 

B. Copies of any other permit required and issued for said sign, including the written approval by the Electrical Inspector, in the 
case of illuminated signs, who shall examine the plans and specifications, reinspecting all wiring and connections to determine 
if the same complies with all applicable local, state and federal electrical codes and regulations. 

C. Additional information as may be required by the Zoning Administrator. 



D. Sign permit applications shall be filed with the Zoning Administrator, who shall review the application for its completeness 
and accuracy. 

E. The Zoning Administrator shall approve, deny, or forward to the Planning Commission, in writing, the application within 15 
days of receipt unless the time is extended by written agreement with the applicant. A sign permit shall become null and void, 
if work authorized under the permit has not been completed within six months of the date of issuance. 

F. Fee. The fee for the permit shall be in accordance with the Village's current Schedule of Fees. 
[Added 12-17-2020 by Ord. No. 2020-06] 




